m DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH

Protecting, Maintaining and Improving the Health of All Minnesotans

Electronically delivered
July 23, 2024

Administrator

Fairway View Neighborhoods
201 Mark Drive

Ortonville, MN 56278

RE: CCN: 245451
Cycle Start Date: July 10, 2024

Dear Administrator:

On July 10, 2024, a survey was completed at your facility by the Minnesota Departments of Health and
Public Safety, to determine if your facility was in compliance with Federal participation requirements
for skilled nursing facilities and/or nursing facilities participating in the Medicare and/or Medicaid
programes.

This survey found the most serious deficiencies in your facility to be isolated deficiencies that
constituted no actual harm with potential for more than minimal harm that was not immediate
jeopardy (Level D), as evidenced by the electronically attached CMS-2567 whereby corrections are
required.

ELECTRONIC PLAN OF CORRECTION (ePoC)

Within ten (10) calendar days after your receipt of this notice, you must submit an acceptable ePOC for
the deficiencies cited. An acceptable ePOC will serve as your allegation of compliance. Upon receipt of
an acceptable ePOC, we will authorize a revisit to your facility to determine if substantial compliance

has been achieved.
To be acceptable, a provider's ePOC must include the following:

e How corrective action will be accomplished for those residents found to have been affected by the

deficient practice.

e How the facility will identify other residents having the potential to be affected by the same
deficient practice.

e \What measures will be put into place, or systemic changes made, to ensure that the deficient
practice will not recur.

e How the facility will monitor its corrective actions to ensure that the deficient practice is being
corrected and will not recur.

e The date that each deficiency will be corrected.

e An electronic acknowledgement signature and date by an official facility representative.

An equal opportunity employer.
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The state agency may, in lieu of an onsite revisit, determine correction and compliance by accepting

the facility's ePoC if the ePoC is reasonable, addresses the problem and provides evidence that the
corrective action has occurred.

It an acceptable ePoC is not received within 10 calendar days from the receipt of this letter, we will
recommend to the CMS Region V Office that one or more of the following remedies be imposed:

. Denial of payment for new Medicare and Medicaid admissions (42 CFR 488.417);

. Civil money penalty (42 CFR 488.430 through 488.444).

. Termination of your facility’s Medicare and/or Medicaid agreement (488.456(b)).
DEPARTMENT CONTACT

Questions regarding this letter and all documents submitted as a response to the resident care

deficiencies (those preceded by an "F"and/or an "E" tag), i.e., the plan of correction should be directed
to:

LeAnn Huseth, RN, Unit Supervisor

Fergus Falls District Office

Licensing and Certification Program

Health Regulation Division

Minnesota Department of Health

2312 College Way

Fergus Falls, 56537

Email: leann.huseth@state.mn.us

Office: (218) 332-5140 Mobile: (218) 403-1100

PRESUMPTION OF COMPLIANCE - CREDIBLE ALLEGATION OF COMPLIANCE

The facility's ePoC will serve as your allegation of compliance upon the Department's acceptance. In
order for your allegation of compliance to be acceptable to the Department, the ePoC must meet the
criteria listed in the plan of correction section above. You will be notified by the Minnesota Department
of Health, Licensing and Certification Program staff and/or the Department of Public Safety, State Fire
Marshal Division staff, if your ePoC for the respective deficiencies (if any) is acceptable.

VERIFICATION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE

Upon receipt of an acceptable ePoC, a Post Certification Revisit (PCR), of your facility will be conducted

to validate that substantial compliance with the regulations has been attained in accordance with your
verification.

If substantial compliance has been achieved, certification of your facility in the Medicare and/or
Medicaid program(s) will be continued and remedies will not be imposed. Compliance is certified as of
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the latest correction date on the approved ePoC, unless it is determined that either correction actually
occurred between the latest correction date on the ePoC and the date of the first revisit, or correction
occurred sooner than the latest correction date on the ePoC.

FAILURE TO ACHIEVE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE BY THE THIRD OR SIXTH MONTH AFTER THE LAST DAY
OF THE SURVEY

If substantial compliance with the regulations is not verified by October 10, 2024 (three months after
the identification of noncompliance), the CMS Region V Office must deny payment for new admissions
as mandated by the Social Security Act (the Act) at Sections 1819(h)(2)(D) and 1919(h)(2)(C) and
Federal regulations at 42 CFR Section 488.417(b).

In addition, if substantial compliance with the regulations is not verified by January 10, 2025 (six
months after the identification of noncompliance) your provider agreement will be terminated. This
action is mandated by the Social Security Act at Sections 1819(h)(2)(C) and 1919(h)(3)(D) and Federal
regulations at 42 CFR Sections 488.412 and 488.456.

Please note that this notice does not constitute formal notice of imposition of alternative remedies or
termination of your provider agreement. Should the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
determine that termination or any other remedy is warranted, it will provide you with a separate
formal notification of that determination.

INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IDR) / INDEPENDENT INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IIDR)

In accordance with 42 CFR 488.331, you have one opportunity to question cited deficiencies through
an informal dispute resolution process. You are required to send your written request, along with the
specific deficiencies being disputed, and an explanation of why you are disputing those deficiencies, to:

Nursing Home Informal Dispute Process
Minnesota Department of Health
Health Regulation Division

P.O. Box 64900

St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0900

This request must be sent within the same ten days you have for submitting an ePoC for the cited
deficiencies. All requests for an IDR or |IDR of federal deficiencies must be submitted via the web at:
https://mdhprovidercontent.web.health.state.mn.us/ltc idr.cfm

You must notify MDH at this website of your request for an IDR or [IDR within the 10 calendar day
period allotted for submitting an acceptable electronic plan of correction. A copy of the Department’s
informal dispute resolution policies are posted on the MDH Information Bulletin website at:
https://www.health.state.mn.us/facilities/regulation/infobulletins/ib04 8.html

Please note that the failure to complete the informal dispute resolution process will not delay the dates
specified for compliance or the imposition of remedies.
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Questions regarding all documents submitted as a response to the Life Safety Code deficiencies (those
oreceded by a "K" tag), i.e., the plan of correction, request for waivers, should be directed to:

Travis Z. Ahrens

State Fire Safety Supervisor

Health Care & Correctional Facilities

MN Department of Public Safety-Fire Marshal Division
445 Minnesota St., Suite 145

St. Paul, MN 55101

Email: travis.ahrens@state.mn.us

Web: www.sfm.dps.mn.gov

Cell: 1-507-308-4185

Feel free to contact me if you have questions.

Sincerely,

l.--"l:-._J;....-‘:':.. f-ﬁ.ﬁ._i'_a

e

Sarah Lane, Compliance Analyst

-ederal Enforcement | Health Regulation Division
Minnesota Department of Health

P.0. Box 64900

Saint Paul, MN 55164-0900

Telephone: 651-201-4308 Fax: 651-215-9697
Email: sarah.lane@state.mn.us
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On 7/8/24 to 7/10/24, a survey for compliance
with Appendix Z, Emergency Preparedness
Requirements, §483.7/3(b)(6) was conducted
during a standard recertification survey. The
facility was IN compliance.

The facllity is enrolled in ePOC and therefore a
signature Is not required at the bottom of the first
page of the CMS-2567 form. Although no plan of
correction Is required, it is required that the facility
acknowledge receipt of the electronic documents.

F 000 | INITIAL COMMENTS F 000

On 7/8/24 to //10/24, a standard recertification
survey was conducted at your facility. A complaint
Investigation was also conducted. Your facility
was NOT in compliance with the requirements of
42 CFR 483, Subpart B, Requirements for Long
Term Care Facilities.

In addition to the recertification survey, the
following complaints were reviewed:

The following complaints were reviewed with no
deficiency issued.

154514864C (MN00099878),

154514865C (MN00099441).

The facility's plan of correction (POC) will serve
as your allegation of compliance upon the
Departments acceptance. Because you are
enrolled in ePOC, your signature is not required
at the bottom of the first page of the CMS-2567
form. Your electronic submission of the POC will
be used as verification of compliance.

Upon receipt of an acceptable electronic POC, an

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE (X6) DATE
Electronically Signed 08/12/2024

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that
other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days
following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14
days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued
program participation.

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event |D:8IDE11 Facility ID: 00771 If continuation sheet Page 1 of 18
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§483.24(a)(2) A resident who is unable to carry

out activities of daily living receives the necessary
services to maintain good nutrition, grooming, and

personal and oral hygiene;

This REQUIREMENT Is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation, interview and document
review, the facility failed to provide assistance
with routine grooming cares which included facial
hair removal for 1 of 1 residents (R14) reviewed
for activities of daily living (ADLs) who required
assistance with grooming and personal hygiene.

Findings include:

R14's significant change Minimum Data Set
(MDS) dated 6/12/24, identified R14 had
moderate cognitive impairment and diagnoses
which included: Alzheimer's disease, arthritis and
hypertension. Indicated R14 required
partial/moderate assistance for personal hygiene
and dressing. R14 required maximum assistance
with bathing. Identified R14 had physical and
verbal behavior symptoms one to three days and
did not exhibit rejection of cares.

R14's care plan revised 6/18/24, identified R14
required assistance with ADLs related to
Alzheimer's disease. R14's care plan
approaches identified R14 required extensive
assistance with bathing and dressing. In addition,
R14 required cueing, set up and extensive

R14’s facial hair was shaved on 7/9/24.
R14 has a history of declining shaving,
thus R14’s Care Plan was updated on
//11/24 stating, “| need assistance with
shaving my facial hair, and | often decline
to be shaved.”

Education was provided to all direct
caregivers on 7/17/24 on the importance
that shaving has on a resident’s dignity,
cleanliness, and for providing good skin
care. Education was also provided to
direct caregivers on 7/1/7/24 on
re-approaching a resident when a resident
declines to be shaved and to report to
nurse when the resident continues to
decline being shaved. Re-education was
provided at the All Staff Meeting on
8/14/24 on shaving and ADL care
provided for dependent residents.

Each household developed a list of all
residents who have facial hair that need to
be shaved on a regular basis. Weekly
audits began the week of 7/29/24 and all
residents on this list including new
admission who need to be shaved will be
audited by 8/20/24 to ensure compliance.
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onsite revisit of your facility may be conducted to
validate that substantial compliance with the
regulations has been attained.
F 677 ADL Care Provided for Dependent Residents FGr77 8/20/24
SS=D | CFR(s): 483.24(a)(2)
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assistance with grooming, which included
brushing teeth and combing hair. R14's care plan
lacked an approach for facial hair removal.

During an observation on 7/8/24 at 12:28 p.m.,
R14 was seated in her recliner in her room. R14
had six to eight white facial hairs eight to twelve
millimeter (mm) long on the front of her chin, and
three to four white facial hairs above and beside
her lips.

During a telephone interview on 7/8/24 at 3:06
a.m., family member (FM)-A indicated it bothered
her that R14 would have facial hair present and
expected staff to assist with removing it. FM-A
stated she was unaware If it bothered R14.

During an observation on 7/9/24 at 8:45 a.m.,
R14 was dressed in street clothes and seated In
her recliner in her room. R14 continued to have
six to eight white facial hairs eight to twelve mm
long on the front of her chin and three to four
white facial hairs above and beside her lips.

During an observation and interview on 7/9/24 at
9:36 a.m., nursing assistant (NA)-B stated her
usual practice was to remove facial hair when
observed. NA-B indicated she was aware R14
had long facial hairs on her chin. NA-B indicated
R14's pen razor quit working a couple of weeks
ago and her family was going to order one
however, was unsure if R14 had a new one yet.
NA-B stated it depended on R14's mood when
they would assist R14 with cares and if needed,
would leave her alone then re-approach later to
complete cares. At 9:50 a.m. NA-B knocked and
entered R14's room and located R14's razor in
R14's drawer in her bathroom. NA-B asked R14
If she could shave her and R14 agreed. NA-B

monitor shaving.
This plan of correction will

Weekly audits will continue to occur for 6
weeks after compliance date of 8/20/24 to

and brought to our monthly QAPI meeting.
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then removed R14's facial hair with the electric
pen razor without difficulty and confirmed R14
had multiple facial hairs present that she had
removed.

During an interview on 7/9/24 at 10:09 a.m.,
registered nurse (RN)-B stated the nursing staff
were expected to assist residents with facial hair
removal if they were agreeable to it. RN-B
Indicated she was aware R14 had facial hairs
present that morning and had planned to go back
and shave R14 later that day. RN-B confirmed it
appeared R14's facial hairs had been present
more than a couple of days. RN-B stated R14
usually agreed to having her facial hair removed
however, if she did refuse, staff would just
re-approach her at another time. RN-B indicated
It was important to assist R14 to remove facial
hair as that was a dignity issue and could have
been embarrassing to her.

During an interview on 7/9/24 at 11:57 a.m.,
neighborhood nurse leader RN-C confirmed R14
required assistance with ADLs. RN-C indicated
her expectation was staff would assist residents
to remove facial hair and it was important to do so
to promote dignity. RN-C stated R14 refused
cares at times however, expected staff to
re-approach R14 if refused.

During an interview on 7//9/24 at 4:38 p.m.,
director of nursing (DON) indicated it was her
expectation nursing staff removed facial hair for
residents if they were agreeable. DON confirmed
her expectation was If a resident refused to allow
staff to remove the facial hair, the nursing staff
would re-approach, and if continued to refuse to
report to the nurse who would document in the
progress notes. DON indicated if the resident

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event ID:8IDE11 Facility ID: 00771 If continuation sheet Page 4 of 18
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§483.25(d) Accidents.

The facility must ensure that -

§483.25(d)(1) The resident environment remains
as free of accident hazards as Is possible; and

§483.25(d)(2)Each resident recelves adequate
supervision and assistance devices to prevent
accidents.

This REQUIREMENT Is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation, interview and document
Interview, the facility failed to conduct an accurate
and timely smoking assessment for 1 of 1
residents (R16) who currently smoked.

Findings Include:

R16's admission Minimum Data Set (MDS) dated
6/12/24, indicated R16 was cognitively intact and
was Iindependent with mobility, transfers, toileting,
and required limited assistance with dressing.
|dentified R16 had hypertension (high blood
pressure), arthritis and a wound infection.

R16's care plan updated 7/8/24, indicated R16

R16’s smoking assessment was
completed on 7/8/24. Re-education was
provided to staff member on 7/10/24 that
a smoking assessment needs to be
completed upon admission, annually, or
after a significant change to ensure the
resident’s safety while smoking. An audit
was completed for all other residents who
smoke. This audit revealed that one other
resident who smokes also did not have a
completed smoking assessment, and this
assessment was completed immediately

upon finding. All nurse leads were
re-educated on 7/1/7/24. A smoking
observation was added to the admission
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continued to refuse, she would expect it would
have been care planned. DON stated it was
Important to assist residents to remove facial hair
for dignity purposes.
The facllity policy titled Shaving The Resident
revised 3/14/24, identified the purpose was to
promote cleanliness and to provide skin care.
The policy instructed staff to notify the supervisor
If the resident refused the procedure.
F 689 Free of Accident Hazards/Supervision/Devices F 689 38/13/24
SS=D | CFR(s): 483.25(d)(1)(2)
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was a current smoker and was at risk for injury
related to smoking. ldentified R16 demonstrated
safety with smoking and disposed cigarette butts
In the appropriate designated location.

R16's initial smoking assessment dated 7/8/24,
was completed by therapy staff and indicated R16
was a safe smoker, was able to get to/from
smoking location and demonstrated safe
use/disposal of cigarette butts.

During an observation and interview on 7/8/24 at
2:93 p.m., R16 indicated it was hard to go from
the building to the smoking area and R16 was
unable to get down the lip of the driveway to the
road where R16 was supposed to be smoking.
R16 revealed she was unable to reach the
smoking butt receptacle so she placed her
cigarette butts in her right pants’ pocket and
would dispose of them In the trash in her room.
R16 smoked one cigarette, put the cigarette out
on the right metal arm of her wheelchair and put
the cigarette butt in her pocket. R16 obtained
another cigarette and repeated the process. R16
obtained the third cigarette and repeated the
process.

During a continuous observation on //8/24:

-6:29 p.m., R16 was seated in her wheelchair at
the corner of the parking lot leading to the road.
R16 put her cigarette out on the right metal arm
of her wheelchair and placed the cigarette butt in
her right pants' pocket.

-6:39 p.m., R16 obtained another cigarette, lit and
smoked it, put it out on the right metal arm of her
wheelchair, twisted the end of the cigarette and
placed the cigarette butt in her right pants’
pocket.

-6:48 p.m., R16 obtained the third cigarette, lit

checklist.

DON will audit all smoking residents and
new smoking residents weekly for 6
weeks starting the week of 8/12/24 to
monitor that smoking assessments are
being done timely upon admission, upon
signhificant changes of resident, and
annually to ensure resident safety.

The facility has made the decision that it
will not admit residents that smoke after
10/1/24. A policy has been finalized and
will be effective on 10/1/24 going forward.
This plan of correction will be monitored
and brought to our monthly QAPI meeting.

(X4) ID SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ID PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DATE
DEFICIENCY)
F 689 Continued From page 5 F 689
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and smoked it, put her cigarette out on the right
metal arm of her wheelchair, twisted the end of
the cigarette and placed the cigarette butt in her
right pants' pocket.

During an observation on 7/8/24 at 6:36 p.m.,
R16 was seated in her wheelchair at the corner of
the parking lot leading to the road. R16 put her
cigarette out on the right metal arm of her
wheelchair, twisted the butt of her cigarette and
placed the cigarette butt in her right pants'

pocket.

During an interview on /7/10/24 at 7:04 a.m., R16
stated it would be easier if the facility moved the
cigarette butt receptacle closer to the end of the
driveway so R16 could throw her cigarette butts
away outside. R16 confirmed she placed her
cigarette butts in her right pants pocket and threw
them away in the trash in her room when she
went back into the facility. R16 indicated she did
not even try to dispose of her cigarette butts in
the receptacle since she was not able to reach it
from where she sat.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 9:53 a.m.,
physical therapy assistant (PTA) indicated R16
was discharged from physical therapy (PT) on
715/24, as she met her goal of becoming
Independent. PTA stated PT was working with
R16 and PT would occasionally go outside with
R16 to smoke. PTA stated R16 never mentioned
she was not able to get to the cigarette butt
receptacle and PT never saw R16 place cigarette
butts in her right pants pocket.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:29 a.m.,
registered nurse (RN)-D revealed R16 was
admitted 6/6/24, and a smoking assessment was

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event ID:8IDE11 Facility ID: 00771 If continuation sheet Page 7 of 18
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not completed upon admission. RN-D stated
R16's smoking assessment was not completed
until 7/8/24. RN-D indicated she was not aware
R16 was putting her cigarettes out on the right
metal arm of her wheelchair and placing them in
her pocket to dispose of them in the facility. In
addition, RN-D stated she was not aware R16
could not reach the cigarette receptacle to
properly dispose of her cigarette butts.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:47 a.m.,
director of nursing (DON) indicated she was not
aware a smoking assessment had not been
completed on R16 upon admission. DON stated
she was not aware R16 could not reach the
cigarette butt receptacle and was placing her
cigarette butts in her right pants' pocket to
dispose of them In the facility. DON stated her
expectations were If staff knew a resident
smoked upon admission, a smoking assessment
should have been completed at that time.

Facility Policy titled Smoking Policy revised
2/14/24, if a resident strongly felt smoking added
to their quality of life they would be allowed to
continue to smoke. They must be assessed for
safety upon admission, annually, or after a
signhificant change.

F 880 | Infection Prevention & Control F 880 7130/24
SS=D | CFR(s): 483.80(a)(1)(2)(4)(e)(f)

§483.80 Infection Control

The facility must establish and maintain an
Infection prevention and control program
designed to provide a safe, sanitary and
comfortable environment and to help prevent the
development and transmission of communicable
diseases and infections.
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§483.80(a) Infection prevention and control
program.

The facility must establish an infection prevention
and control program (IPCP) that must include, at
a minimum, the following elements:

§483.80(a)(1) A system for preventing, identifying,
reporting, investigating, and controlling infections
and communicable diseases for all residents,
staff, volunteers, visitors, and other individuals
providing services under a contractual
arrangement based upon the facility assessment
conducted according to §483.70(e) and following
accepted national standards;

§483.80(a)(2) Written standards, policies, and
procedures for the program, which must include,
but are not limited to:

(1) A system of surveillance designed to identify
possible communicable diseases or

Infections before they can spread to other
persons In the facility;

(1) When and to whom possible incidents of
communicable disease or infections should be
reported;

(1) Standard and transmission-based precautions
to be followed to prevent spread of infections;
(v)When and how isolation should be used for a
resident; including but not limited to:

(A) The type and duration of the isolation,
depending upon the infectious agent or organism
Involved, and

(B) A requirement that the isolation should be the
least restrictive possible for the resident under the
circumstances.

(v) The circumstances under which the facility
must prohibit employees with a communicable

F 880
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disease or infected skin lesions from direct
contact with residents or their food, if direct
contact will transmit the disease; and

(vi) The hand hygiene procedures to be followed
by staff involved In direct resident contact.

§483.80(a)(4) A system for recording incidents
iIdentified under the facility's IPCP and the
corrective actions taken by the facility.

§483.80(e) Linens.

Personnel must handle, store, process, and
transport linens so as to prevent the spread of
Infection.

§483.80(f) Annual review.

The facility will conduct an annual review of its

IPCP and update their program, as necessary.
This REQUIREMENT Is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation, interview and document
review, the facility failed to ensure proper hand
hygiene during a medication pass for 3 of 7
(residents R44, R15, R48 ) observed for
medication administration and during personal
cares for 1 of 4 residents (R45) observed for
captivities of daily living (ADL's). In addition, the
facility failed to implement appropriate
donning/doffing of personal protective equipment
(PPE) practices and to ensure PPE was readily
avallable for use to prevent the spread of
Infection for 1 of 5 residents (R16) observed for
enhanced barrier precautions (EBP) (an infection
control intervention designed to reduce
transmission of multidrug-resistant organisms
that employs targeted gown and glove use during
high contact resident care activities).

Findings include:

Hand Hygiene/Medication Pass: Staff
member was re-educated on /7/10/24 on
the proper use of hand hygiene while
administering eye drops. All residents
using eye drops and/or having
medications administered to them have a
potential to be impacted by improper
glove use If caregiver is not properly
performing hand hygiene. All direct
caregivers who administer medications
were educated by DON on 7/17/24.
Annual Education led by our Infection
Control Nurse was also provided on
719/24 and 7/30/24 and included Hand
Hygiene competency training.

Audits to monitor compliance of hand
hygiene during eye drop administration
began the week of 7/29/24 which consists
of auditing 3 residents per household per
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HAND HYGIENE/MEDICATION PASS

R44's quarterly Minimum Data Set (MDS) dated
6/16/24, identified R44 had intact cognition and
diagnosis which included: hypertension (elevated
blood pressure) Diabetes and glaucoma.
|dentified R44 required limited assistance with
activities of daily living (ADL's) which included
bed mobility, transfers, and personal hygiene.

R44's care plan dated 11/13/23, identified R44

required limited assistance with ADL's. R44's care

plan lacked an approach for medication
administration.

R15's significant change MDS dated 5/25/24,
iIdentified R15 had intact cognition and diagnosis
which included anemia (a condition in which
blood doesn't have enough healthy red blood
cells and hemoglobin) Atrial fibrillation (rapid
heart rate that causes poor blood flow), and
Alzheimer's Disease. |dentified R15 required
limited assistance with ADL's which included bed
mobility, transfers, and personal hygiene.

R15's care plan dated 5/19/24, identified R15
required limited assistance and a walker for
ambulation related to her cognition.

R48's significant change MDS dated 6/5/24,
Identified R48 had intact cognition and diagnosis
which included hypertension (elevated blood
pressure) hyperlipidemia (elevated cholesterol)
and Alzheimer's Disease. Identified R48 required
limited assistance with ADL's which included bed
mobility, transfers and personal hygiene.

R48's care plan dated 5/18/24 identified R48

week for 6 weeks to ensure proper glove
use and hand hygiene occurs during eye
drop administration.

Audit results on Hand Hygiene/Medication
Pass will be monitored and reported to
our monthly QAPI committee meeting.

Enhanced Barrier Precautions: R16 was
placed into Enhanced Barrier Precautions
on 7/9/24. Infection Control Nurse audited
all residents on 7/16/24 to ensure that
EBP were properly placed on residents
requiring them. During this audit, no other
residents were identified as being
deficient in utilizing EBP. Education was
provided to direct caregivers on //17/24
explaining the conditions when EBP
should be used for residents, specifically
educating that residents with a PICC line
must be placed on EBP. It was also
educated on //1/7/24 that these
precautions must be placed immediately
upon resident admission if they require
EBP or upon a significant change causing
a resident to be placed on EBP. Annual
Education led by our Infection Control
Nurse was also provided on 7/9/24 and
//30/24 and included training on EBP and
PPE competency of caregivers.
Re-education was provided during All
Caregiver Meeting on 8/14/24.

Enhanced Barrier Precautions were
added to the admission checklist.

Audits were started the week of 7/29/24 to
observe staff providing high contact
resident care to 3 residents per household
per week needing Enhanced Barrier
Precautions for 6 weeks or until 100%
compliant.
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required limited assistance with ADL's. R48's care
plan lacked interventions for medication
administration.

During an observation on 7/8/24 at 5:21 p.m.,
trained medication aide (TMA)-A entered R44's
room with Timoptic (Eye drops used to treat
elevated pressure in the eyes) eye drops in her
hand. R44 was seated in her recliner and TMA-A
proceeded to place gloves on both hands and
while touching R44's face used her left hand to
pull down on each of R44's eye lids as she
administered the eye drop to each eye with her
right hand. TMA-A removed her gloves and
proceeded to dish up medications for R15.
TMA-A administered R15's medications and then
handed R15 her water pitcher. TMA-A proceeded
to place a transfer belt around R135's waist and
walked with her to supper. TMA-A removed the
transfer belt from R15 and pushed R15's
wheelchair up tot he table. TMA-A proceeded to
dish up medications for R48. TMA-A placed
gloves on both hands and broke one of R48's
medications in half and administered medications
to R48 after obtaining a bottle out of R48's fridge
and handing it to R44 to take her medications
with. TMA-A wheeled R48 in her wheelchair to the
dining room. At no time during the above
observation had TMA-A performed hand hygiene.

During an interview on //8/24 at 5:41 p.m.,
TMA-A confirmed the above observation and that
she had not performed hand hygiene. TMA-A
stated she should have performed hand hygiene
after administering R44's eye drops and before
assisting any other residents. TMA-A stated hand
hygiene was important to reduce the spread of
Infection.

Audit results on EBP will be monitored
and reported to our monthly QAPI
committee meeting.

Hand Hygiene: Staff member involved In
deficient practice of hand hygiene during
perineal care was re-educated on 7/10/24.
All residents were identified to have the
potential to be impacted by improper hand
hygiene and glove use during perineal
care. Education was provided to direct
caregivers on 7/17/24 explaining proper
glove use and hand hygiene to prevent
cross-contamination during perineal care.
Annual Education led by our Infection
Control Nurse was also provided on
719/24 and 7/30/24 and included
competency training on Perineal care,
hand hygiene, and proper PPE usage.
Re-education was provided during All
Caregiver Meeting on 8/14/24.

Audits were started the week of 7/29/24 to
observe and test staff competency on
proper glove use and hand hygiene during
perineal care, and this audit will occur
weekly for 6 weeks with nurse oversight.
Audit results on hand hygiene and glove
use during perineal care will be monitored
and reported to our monthly QAPI
committee meeting.
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Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) guidelines dated 4/2/24, PPE use In
Nursing Homes to Prevent Spread of
Multidrug-Resistant Organisms (MDROs).
Expand the use of PPE and refer to the use of
gown and gloves during high-contact resident
care activities that provide opportunities for
transfer of MDROs to staff hands and clothing.
Nursing home residents with wounds and
Indwelling medical devices are at especially high
risk of both acquisition of and colonization with
MDROs. The use of gown and gloves for
high-contact resident care activities was indicated
for nursing home residents with wound and/or
Indwelling medical devices regardless of MDRO
colonization.

Resident roster dated 7/9/24, lacked identification
of R16 being on EBP.

R16's admission MDS dated 6/12/24, indicated
R16 was cognitively intact and was independent
with mobillity, transfers, toileting and required
limited assistance with dressing. |dentified R16
had hypertension (high blood pressure), arthritis,
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a wound infection, and a peripherally inserted
central catheter (PICC).

R16's care plan dated 7/8/24, indicated R16 was
to receive intravenous (1V) antibiotics for an

Infection. R16's care plan lacked documentation
R16 was on EBP.

R16's provider progress notes dated //3/24,
Indicated R16 was in the nursing home due to an
unexpected discovery of pyogenic arthritis when
she received a hip replacement. R16 had
required |V antibiotics and consultation with
Infectious disease.

R16's treatment administration history dated
6/7/24 to 7/10/24, indicated R16 was to receive
Ceftriaxone (antibiotic) one gram via |V route one
time dalily, change PICC caps every three days,
measure arm circumference daily, PICC line
dressing change every week, flush both PICC
ports with 10 milliliters (ml) daily, and Vancomycin
(antibiotic) 1000 milligrams (mg) via |V route one
time daily.

During an observation on 7/9/24 at 8:40 a.m.,
R16 was seated in her wheelchair in her room
working on her computer. Registered nurse
(RN)-E gathered supplies to administer R16's
VVancomycin one gram in 200 ml solution via | V.
RN-E washed her hands, applied gloves, opened
an alcohol wipe, removed current IV tubing and
cleansed the |V hub. RN-E flushed the port with
10 ml normal saline (NS). RN-E left the syringe
hooked to the port while she opened the antibiotic
and spiked the bag. RN-E primed the tubing,
placed the tubing into the IV pump, removed the
syringe, cleansed the hub with alcohol, attached
the tubing to the port and programmed the pump.
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I\ antibiotics began running. RN-E removed her
gloves and washed her hands. RN-E was not
observed to be wearing a gown as indicated for
EBP. There was no sighage present on the door
iIdentifying R16 was on EBP. In addition, there

was no PPE available inside or outside the room
for EBP.

During an observation on 7/09/24 at 2:24 p.m.,
there continued to be no EBP PPE inside or
outside R16's room. Additionally, there continued
to be no signage indicating R16 was on EBP.

During an interview on /7/10/24 at 7:04 a.m., R16
revealed staff only wore gloves when they were
assisting her. R16 indicated staff had never worn

a gown or any additional PPE when assisting
R16.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:29 a.m.,
registered nurse (RN)-D confirmed R16 was to be
on EBP and was not aware R16 did not have any
PPE Inside or outside of R16's room.

HAND HYGIENE

R45's admission MDS dated 4/23/24, identified
R45 had mildly impaired cognition and was
diagnosed with hypertension, dementia, and
osteoporosis. R45 needed moderate assistance
with transferring on and off the toilet, maximal
assistance with perineal hygiene, moderate aid
with dressing, and substantial assistance with
personal hygiene.

During an observation on 7/10/24 at 8:09 a.m.,
NA-A sanitized hands, and applied gloves. NA-A
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had R45 sit on the toilet. NA-A removed pajamas
and brief. NA-A placed the brief in the garbage
and applied a clean brief and pants while R25
was seated on the toilet. NA-A had R45 stand up
and used a wet washcloth with soap and provided
perineal hygiene using a circular wiping motion
from front to back. NA-A took a moist washcloth
without soap and washed R435's perineal area
from front to back. NA-A took a dry towel and
dried R45's perineal area from front to back.
NA-A assisted R45 to a standing position, pulled
up R45's briefs and pants. NA-A removed gloves
and asked R45 to walk to the sink. NA-A combed
R45's hair and assisted R45 with applying
toothpaste to the toothbrush. NA-A asked R45 to
sit in the wheelchair, wheeled R45 out of the
room. At that time, NA-A used hand sanitizer that
was located outside of the door and brought R45
to the dining room.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 8:25 a.m., NA-A
verified she did not remove gloves between
handing the soiled brief and the clean brief. NA-A
verified hands were not sanitized between
perineal care and oral hygiene care. NA-A
verified not removing gloves and sanitizing hands
could lead to cross-contamination.

During an interview on //10/24 at 8:26 a.m.,
registered nurse RN-A stated her expectation
would be for staff to change gloves after perineal
care to prevent cross-contamination.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:00 a.m.,
Infection preventionist (IP) stated hand hygiene
was Important after removing gloves to prevent
the spread of infection. |P stated her expectation
was that staff always performed hand hygiene
after removing gloves. In addition, |P stated staff
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were expected to remove gloves, perform hand
hygiene and apply clean gloves after performing
perineal cares to prevent cross-contamination.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:05 a.m., |IP
Indicated the faclility implemented the EBP
process In April 2024, and confirmed R16 should
have been on EBP due to wound care and a
PICC In place. |P stated staff were educated last
week about R16 being on EBP. IP indicated she
was not aware R16 did not have any PPE inside
or outside of R16's room. |P stated she would
expect staff to follow EBP guidelines when they
completed high-contact care with residents who
were in EBP.

During an interview on /7/10/24 at 11:14 a.m.,
director of nursing (DON) stated her expectation
would be for staff to change gloves after
removing dirty briefs and to change gloves after
perineal care. DON stated she would have
expected staff to perform hand hygiene before
oral cares and hair care were completed to
prevent cross-contamination.

During an interview on 7/10/24 at 11:32 a.m.,
DON stated her expectation was staff would have
washed their hands after removing gloves and
before assisting any other residents.

During an interview on /7/10/24 at 11:43 a.m.,
DON confirmed the above findings and stated her
expectations were staff were to follow the EBP
guidelines. DON stated staff were to have
gowns/gloves on and were to sanitize/wash their
hands before and after cares.

Facility policy titled Wound Care revised date
3/14/24, the following equipment and supplies
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would be necessary when performing this
procedure: personal protective equipment (e.qg.
gowns, gloves, mask, etc., as needed).

Facility policy titled Enhance Barrier Protection
revised 4/19/24, Fairway View - Long Term Care
to implement enhanced barrier precautions for
the prevention of transmission of multidrug
resistant organisms. An order would be obtained
for residents with any of the following: wounds
and/or indwelling medical devices including
central lines. PPE for enhanced barrier
precautions Is only necessary when performing
high-contact care activities. High contact care
activities include: device care or use and wound
care.

Requested a policy on PICC care and dressing
change, however one was not provided.

A policy titled Hand Hygiene-Ortonville dated
2/13/24 revealed when to perform hand hygiene
"moving from contaminated body site to clean
body site during patient care, after removing
gloves.” "Change gloves when moving from a
dirty to a clean site during patient care and
perform hand hygiene after glove removal.”
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INITIAL COMMENTS

FIRE SAFETY

An annual Life Safety Code survey was conducted
by the Minnesota Department of Public Safety,
State Fire Marshal Division on 0//9/2024. At the
time of this survey, Fairway View Neighborhoods
was found not in compliance with the requirements
for participation in Medicare/Medicaid at 42 CFR,
Subpart 483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire, and the
2012 edition of National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety Code (LSC),
Chapter 19 Existing Health Care and the 2012
edition of NFPA 99 Health Care Facilities Code.

THE FACILITY'S POC WILL SERVE AS YOUR
ALLEGATION OF COMPLIANCE UPON THE
DEPARTMENT'S ACCEPTANCE. YOUR
SIGNATURE AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST
PAGE OF THE CMS-2567 FORM WILL BE USED
AS VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE.

UPON RECEIPT OF AN ACCEPTABLE POC, AN
ONSITE REVISIT OF YOUR FACILITY MAY BE
CONDUCTED TO VALIDATE THAT SUBSTANTIAL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS HAS
BEEN ATTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH YOUR
VERIFICATION.

PLEASE RETURN THE PLAN OF CORRECTION
FOR THE FIRE SAFETY DEFICIENCIES
(K-TAGS) TO:

F PARTICIPATING IN THE E-POC PROCESS, A
PAPER COPY OF THE PLAN OF CORRECTION
S NOT REQUIRED.

K 000

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE
Electronically Signed

TITLE

(X6) DATE

08/12/2024

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that
other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90
days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are
disclosable 14 days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite
to continued program participation.
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Healthcare Fire Inspections
State Fire Marshal Division
445 Minnesota St., Suite 145
St. Paul, MN 55101-5145, OR

By emaill to:
FM.HC.Inspections@state.mn.us

THE PLAN OF CORRECTION FOR EACH
DEFICIENCY MUST INCLUDE ALL OF THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

1. A detalled description of the corrective action
taken or planned to correct the deficiency.

2. Address the measures that will be put in place
to ensure the deficiency does not reoccur.

3. Indicate how the facility plans to monitor future
performance to ensure solutions are sustained.

4. |dentify who Is responsible for the corrective
actions and monitoring of compliance.

5. The actual or proposed date for completion of
the remedy.

Fairway View Neighborhoods was built in 2016
under the LSC 2000 regulations and is one story in
height without a basement. It is fully fire sprinkled
and was determined to be of Type V(111)
construction. The facility has a fire alarm system
with smoke detection in the corridors and spaces
open to the corridors which is monitored for
automatic fire department notification. The facility
Is divided Into 4 smoke compartments by two-2
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Subdivision of Building Spaces - Smoke Barrier
Doors

2012 EXISTING

Doors in smoke barriers are 1-3/4-inch thick solid
bonded wood-core doors or of construction that
resists fire for 20 minutes. Nonrated protective
plates of unlimited height are permitted. Doors are
permitted to have fixed fire window assemblies per
8.5. Doors are self-closing or automatic-closing, do
not require latching, and are not required to swing
In the direction of egress travel. Door opening
provides a minimum clear width of 32 inches for
swinging or horizontal doors.

19.3.7.6,19.3.7.8, 19.3.7.9

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced by:
Based on observation and staff interview, the
facllity falled to maintain smoke barrier doors per
NFPA 101 (2012 edition), Life Safety Code,
sections 19.3.7.8 and 8.5.4.1. This deficient
finding could have an isolated impact on the
residents within the facility.

Findings Include:

On 07/09/2024 between 9:45 AM and 12:30 PM, it
was revealed by observation that the doors
separating the Nursing Home from the Assisted

Maintenance Director evaluated door upon

finding

fire drill, door was Inspected and had
properly closed. Director of campus
entered the door into Worxhub for
Maintenance to assess door again to

ensure

re-inspect door on 8/13/24 and weekly
thereafter for 2 weeks to ensure it properly

closes.
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hour fire barriers and 2 smoke barriers.
The facility has a capacity of 51 beds and had a
census of 50 at the time of the survey.
The requirement at 42 CFR, Subpart 483.70(a) is
NOT MET as evidenced by:
K374 | Subdivision of Building Spaces - Smoke Barrie K374 8/26/24
SS=D | CFR(s): NFPA 101

on //9/24 and adjusted. During July

It properly closes. Maintenance to
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Living facility did not completely close leaving a
small gap when released from the magnetic
hold-open device.

An Iinterview with the Maintenance Director verified
these deficient findings at the time of discovery.

Combustible Decorations
CFR(s): NFPA 101

Combustible Decorations

Combustible decorations shall be prohibited unless
one of the following Is met:

o Flame retardant or treated with approved
fire-retardant coating that is listed and labeled for
product.

o Decorations meet NFPA 701.

o0 Decorations exhibit heat release less than
100 kilowatts in accordance with NFPA 289.

o Decorations, such as photographs, paintings
and other art are attached to the walls, ceilings
and non-fire-rated doors in accordance with
18.7.5.6(4) or 19.7.5.6(4).

o The decorations In existing occupancies are
In such limited quantities that a hazard of fire
development or spread is not present.

19.7.5.6

This REQUIREMENT 1Is not met as evidenced by:
Based on observation and interview, the facility
did not restrict the use of flammable decorations,
Including candles, in accordance with the
requirements of NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, 2012
edition, section 19.7.5.6. This deficient finding
could have an Isolated impact on the residents
within the facility.

Findings Include:

K374

K753

decoration. Bot
removed from t

719/24. Activity
were educated

Candles will no

On 7/9/24, there were two candles located
In the gift shop in Town Center. One candle
did not have a wick and the other was a
small tea candle that was part of a

719124

n candles were immediately
ne gift shop upon finding on

candles are prohibited from gift shop.

Director and gift shop staff
Immediately on 7/9/24 that

longer be sold there.
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On 07/09/2024 between 9:45 AM and 12:30 PM, it
was revealed by observation that candles were
being sold in the facility's gift shop.

An Iinterview with the Maintenance Director verified
this deficient finding at the time of discovery.

K901 | Fundamentals - Building System Categories K901 8127124
SS=D | CFR(s): NFPA 101

Fundamentals - Building System Categories
Building systems are designed to meet Category 1
through 4 requirements as detailed in NFPA 99.
Categories are determined by a formal and
documented risk assessment procedure performed
by qualified personnel.

Chapter 4 (NFPA 99)

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced by:

Based on a review of available documentation and Maintenance Director has added Chapter
staff interview, the facllity failed to provide a Risk 10 and 11 to the facility's NFPA-99 Form,
Assessment per NFPA 99 (2012 edition), Health which will be reviewed at our monthly QAPI
Care Facilities Code, section 4.2. This deficient meeting on 8/27/24. The form will be
finding could have a widespread impact on the reviewed annually and upon any building or
residents within the facility. equipment changes.

Findings include:

On 07/09/2024 between 9:45 AM and 12:30 PM, it
was revealed by a review of available
documentation that the facility could not provide a
NFPA 99 Risk Assessment for Chapters 10 and 11
at the time of the survey.

An Iinterview with the Maintenance Director verified
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this deficient finding at the time of discovery.
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Doors with Selt-Closing Devices
CFR(s): NFPA 101

Doors with Self-Closing Devices

Doors 1n an exit passageway, stairway enclosure, or horizontal exit, smoke barrier, or hazardous area enclosure
are self-closing and kept in the closed position, unless held open by a release device complying with 7.2.1.8.2
that automatically closes all such doors throughout the smoke compartment or entire facility upon activation

of:

* Required manual fire alarm system; and

* Local smoke detectors designed to detect smoke passing through the opening or a required smoke
detection system; and

* Automatic sprinkler system, 1f installed; and

* Loss of power.

182.22.7,182228,192227,192.22.8

This REQUIREMENT 1s not met as evidenced by:

Based on observation and statf interview, the facility failed to maintain doors per NFPA 101 (2012 edition, Life

Safety Code, section 19.2.2.2.7. These deficient findings could have an 1solated impact on the residents within
the facility.

Findings include:

On 07/09/2024 between 9:45 AM and 12:30 PM, 1t was revealed by observation that the doors to the EVS and
Maintenance shop., Receiving, Soiled Linen, and Laundry rooms 1n the Staif Only Area had kick-down door
stops 1nstalled on self-closing doors. Violations were corrected at the time of discovery.

An interview with the Maintenance Director verified these deficient findings at the time of discovery.

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it 1s determined that other safeguards provide sufficient
protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction 1s

provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an

The above 1solated deficiencies pose no actual harm to the residents
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m , DEPARTMENT
| OF HEALTH
Protecting, Maintaining and Improving the Health of All Minnesotans

Electronically Delivered
September 12, 2024

Administrator

Fairway View Neighborhoods
201 Mark Drive

Ortonville, MN 56278

RE: CCN: 245451
Cycle Start Date: July 10, 2024

Dear Administrator:

On August 23, 2024, the Minnesota Department of Health completed a revisit to verify that your facility
had achieved and maintained compliance. Based on our review, we have determined that your facility
has achieved substantial compliance; therefore no remedies will be imposed.

Feel free to contact me if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Sarah Lane, Compliance Analyst

-ederal Enforcement | Health Regulation Division
Minnesota Department of Health

P.0. Box 64900

Saint Paul, MN 55164-0900

Telephone: 651-201-4308 Fax: 651-215-9697
Email: sarah.lane@state.mn.us

An equal opportunity employer.



